February 19, 1993

Barbara Williamson

Councilmember City of Simi Valley

City Hall

2929 Tapo Canyon Road

Simi Valley, California  93063

Re:  Your Request for Advice

                        Our File No. I-92-628

Dear Ms. Williamson:


As a councilmember in the City of Simi Valley, you have requested advice regarding your duties under the conflict-of-interest provisions of the Political Reform Act (the "Act").     Since your letter does not seek advice regarding a specific pending governmental decision and your questions are general in nature, we treat your letter as a request for informal assistance pursuant to the provisions of Regulation 18329. 


Although the Act may not require disqualification from a particular decision, other statutory provisions, such as Government Code Section 1090, may restrict your ability to participate in certain decisions.  Since this section is not under our jurisdiction, please consult the Attorney General's office if you have questions regarding this section.


QUESTIONS


1)
Under the Act, may you participate in voting on the authorization of warrants drawn on Simi Valley Bank?


2)
May you participate in voting on any request for proposals for bank services, or for any contract extension, termination, etc. involving Simi Valley Bank or any bank which might seek to compete with Simi Valley Bank for the city's banking services contract?


3)
May you participate in decisions regarding investments or investment policy which may directly or indirectly affect Simi Valley Bank? 


4)
May you participate in redevelopment decisions concerning the area where your bank branch is located?


5)   Are you obliged to investigate where persons or firms having matters before the council do their banking or whether they  have any ties to Simi Valley Bank?  If they have ties to the bank, must you disqualify from consideration of the matter?


6)
A large number of city employees have checking/savings accounts or loans with Simi Valley Bank.  May you participate in decisions involving the terms and conditions of employment for such employees? 

CONCLUSIONS


Please see the discussion which follows.

FACTS


The facts which you have presented in your letter are as follows:


1.
You are employed as a vice president of Simi Valley Bank (the "bank") and intend to continue that employment concurrent with your holding office as a councilmember for the City of Simi Valley.  As a vice president of the bank, you are an employee, not a board member or stockholder.  


2.   Prior to your election, the city council entered into a contract with Simi Valley Bank for banking services.  The bank derives income under this contract, which includes various checking accounts as well as certificates of deposit.  In 1991, the amount of that income was in excess of $20,000.


3.
The city council votes approximately twice per month to authorize "warrants" drawn against checking accounts with Simi Valley Bank.  These transactions have an impact which cannot be determined with certainty upon the assets or income of the bank.


4.
The council periodically votes on investment decisions and on investment policy decisions which could directly or indirectly affect Simi Valley Bank.  The amount of such effect cannot be calculated or estimated with any degree of certainty.


5.
The council periodically votes on matters affecting individuals or firms which bank with Simi Valley Bank, and the council's decisions concerning those individuals or firms could have an indirect affect upon the assets or income of the bank in amounts which are incapable of calculation.


6.  Simi Valley Bank operates a branch office, which you manage, in a city redevelopment study area.  The bank occupies the building under a lease.

       ANALYSIS


Section 87100 prohibits public officials from making, participating in, or using their official position to influence a governmental decision in which they know or have reason to know they have a financial interest.  


An official has a financial interest in a governmental decision within the meaning of Section 87100 if it is reasonably foreseeable that the decision will have a material financial effect, distinguishable from its effect on the public generally, on the official, or on a member of the official's immediate family, or on:


(a)  Any business entity in which the public official has a direct or indirect investment worth one thousand dollars ($1,000) or more.


(b)  Any real property in which the public official has a direct or indirect interest worth one thousand dollars ($1,000) or more.  


(c)  Any source of income, other than gifts and other than loans by a commercial lending institution in the regular course of business on terms available to the public without regard to official status, aggregating two hundred fifty dollars ($250) or more in value provided to, received by or promised to the public official within 12 months prior to the time when the decision is made.  


(d)  Any business entity in which the public official is a director, officer, partner, trustee, employee, or holds any position of management.  


(e)  Any donor of, or any intermediary or agent for a donor of, a gift or gifts aggregating two hundred fifty dollars ($250) or more in value provided to, received by, or promised to the public official within 12 months prior to the time when the decision is made.  




Section 87103


Accordingly, you may not make, participate in making, or attempt to use your official position to influence a governmental decision if the decision will have a reasonably foreseeable material financial effect, distinguishable from the effect on the public generally, on Simi Valley Bank.

Foreseeability


The effects of a decision are reasonably foreseeable if there is a substantial likelihood that they will occur.  To be foreseeable, the effects of a decision must be more than a mere possibility; however certainty is not required.  (Downey Cares v. Downey Community Development Com. (1987) 196 Cal. App. 3d 983, 989-991; Witt v. Morrow (1977) 70 Cal. App. 3d 817, 822; In re Thorner (1975) 1 FPPC Ops. 198.)  The Act seeks to prevent more than actual conflicts of interest; it seeks to prevent even the appearance of a possible conflict of interest.  (Witt v. Morrow, supra at 823.)

Materiality


The Commission has adopted several regulations which define material financial effect.  Regulation 18702.1(a) (copy enclosed) contains guidelines for determining when the effect of a decision on a business entity directly involved in a decision is material.

Regulation 18702.2 (copy enclosed) is used to determine when the effect of a decision on a business entity indirectly involved in a decision is material.

Question 1


You may participate in voting on the authorization of warrants drawn on Simi Valley Bank.  Once a contract for certain services has been awarded to a bank, you may transact business and obtain those services from the bank.  (Rogers Advice Letter, No. A-90-362.)  In this situation, the city has already entered into a contract with Simi Valley Bank for banking services.  By authorizing warrants drawn on the bank, you are not exercising your discretion to participate in or influence a governmental decision which may have a financial effect on the bank.  However, under Regulation 18702.1(a)(1), you may not authorize a warrant payable to Simi Valley Bank.

Question 2


The city has a contract with Simi Valley Bank for banking services.  Therefore, under the Act, Simi Valley Bank is directly involved in any decisions concerning this contract or the scope of its services.  (Regulation 18702.1 (b).)  Accordingly, you may not participate in any decisions in which Simi Valley Bank is directly involved. (Regulation 18702.1(a)(1) or (2).) 

Question 3


Similarly, you may not participate in any decisions regarding investment policy which may affect Simi Valley Bank.  Under the Act, any bank that the city is considering doing business with is perceived as "a named party or subject of the proceeding."  (Regulation 18702.1(b)(2), Gatto Advice Letter, No. A-85-253.  In addition, if a decision involves a number of banks, one of which is Simi Valley Bank, you may not participate.


There may also be investment decisions in which Simi Valley Bank is indirectly involved.  In this case, you must apply the appropriate subdivision of Regulation 18702.2 to determine if there will be a reasonably foreseeable material financial effect on Simi Valley Bank.

Question 4

